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The Beyer House is a two-and-one half story brick Queen Anne residence^ 
originally constructed in the Italianate style in 1868. When built it 
was a two-story house with a front veranda spanning the facade. Its shape 
was a central block with one wing and a large cupola and balustrade resting 
on the hipped roof. The windows were shuttered, and the cornice was 
bracketed.

In the 1890s the house was transformed in the Queen Anne style. As such,it 
features two-story polygonal bays on the south side and at the front southeast 
corner; the latter is crowned with a turret. The main entry to the house 
is at the first floor of the turreted bay. At the second floor there is 
a round-arched window with stained glass panes. Stained glass is also 
apparent in the turret windows, in the dormer extending north from the 
turret, and in the side bay.

Wood trim on the house is admirable. A continous decorative frieze band 
accentuated with brackets defines the cornice. The front veranda, curved 
at the southeast corner^ is trimmed with ornate woodwork and features a 
pediment at the doorway. It shelters a Chicago-type window topped with 
an elliptically arched glazed panel. The wing at the rear of the house 
was built in 1871 as a washhouse. It has since been converted to a garage.

The interior of the house has been restored in the Victorian mode by its 
present owner, the Oconto County Historical Society. It is richly furnished 
and approximately 20% of the furnishings are from the Beyer family. The 
rest of the furniture was obtained from Oconto County residents and are 
contemporaneous with the Beyer furniture. There are seventeen rooms and two 
fireplaces on each floor. One enters into a small vestibule and through 
double doors into the hall and stairway. The spiral stairway is walnut 
and features a lovely newel post. There is a parlor, sitting room, and 
music room in the front third of the house, all of large proportions. 
On the west wall of the dining room is a built-in cupboard and the door 
on the south side of this room leads to a porch.

Few changes have occured in the house since the 1890s. The major addition 
has been indoor plumbing and heating systems, installed in the 1890s.

The house is presently owned by the Oconto Historical Society and serves 
as a County museum. The Society began refurbishing the house in 1967 
when they painted and papered the walls using wallpaper with period motifs. 
In 1973-1974 the Society faithfully restored the porches, duplicating 
original parts as needed. The Society hopes to obtain a grant to continue 
their restoration, with the philosophy of maintaining the historical fabric 
of the house.

A small carriage house directly west of the house was built in 1868. It 
is a small rectangular building with a hipped roof and raised vent at the 
crown. Three large doors line the south side of the building. A loft is

inset above. To the east side there is a shed addition. The building has 
served as a barn, carriage house and general storage area.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Beyer House is significant because of its association with two 
locally important business people, Cyrus S. Hart and George Beyer. 
It is also architecturally significant as a fine example of the Queen 
Anne style.

Cyrus S. Hart, a pioneer of Oconto, came there-,when it was nothing 
but an Indian village without houses or roads. He pursued a number 
of businesses, changing his career when a better opportunity appeared. 
From 1863-1865 he owned the Oconto Pioneer, a local newspaper. In 
1865 he established the Hart Steam Boat Line and in 1870 he invested 
in a milling business. One of his most successful ventures was 
ownership of the Oconto Reporter. During the years of his ownership 
(1873-1881 and 1885-1895) he made the Reporter the principal newspaper 
in the country. After selling the Reporter he became active in real 
estate. He is remembered as a determined and energetic person who 
is closely identified with the business and political life in Oconto.^

George Beyer had lived in near abject poverty as a child in Germany 
and his educational opportunities were limited to two terms in a common 
school. When he was twelve his family immigrated from German to Wisconsin; 
within two years of their arrival his parents had died , Beyer performed 
a variety of jobs, including manual labor, hotel clerk and bookkeeper, 
to make ends meet. During this period he managed to attend four months 
at a business college. From 1862 until 1864 he served as the assistant r 
treasurer of the county. In 1864 Beyer enlisted in Regiment H of the 
39th Wisconsin Infantry, when he served as Second Lieutenant. After, 
the war, Beyer's investments in timber lands and insurance made him a 
prosperous man. When the Oconto National Bank was organized, Mr. Beyer 
was appointed president, a position that he held until his death in 
1922. He was also one of the organizers of the Fanner's State Bank 
of Oconto and he organized and was president of the Oconto Lan Company 
and the Citizens Light and Fuel Company. Beyer was instrumental in 
attracting the railroad to run two lines through Oconto.5
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SIGNIFICANCE continued

In 1878 George Beyer bought the fine brick house that Cyrus Hart had 
built in 1868. Originally built in the Italianate style and was transformed 
into a Queen Anne design in the 1890's. The architects for the original 
design and the remodeling are unknown. Probably the most interesting 
aspect of the house is its Queen Anne transformation. In keeping with 
the Queen Anne tradition, this house has interesting and varied detailing 
and massing. The Beyer House is in excellent condition. It remains 
one of the finest Queen Anne homes in Oconto. Oconto was a lumber 
town and as such a brick house, as the Beyer House is, is quite unusual.

George Beyer and Cyrus Hart both demonstrated fulfillment of the 
entrepreneural ambition. Their involvement with various business ventures 
displays their ability to change with the times, being ever aware of 
timely investment. Both of these people helped foster social and 
economic growth in the young Oconto community.


